LeaEr?ll;llg H U b

of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties

Governing Board Packet October 2025

Governing Board

Early Learning Hub
October 2, 2025
Iblearlylearninghub.org



Packet Overview
In your Governing Board packet for October 2025, you will find the following information:

1.

2
3.
4

Agenda

. Special Presentations

Consent Items — September Meeting Minutes

a.

o
C.
d

. Discussion Item

Budget — Approval Needed

. Fiscal Report - Discussion

Operationalization of Workgroups — Informational

. New Board Members — Informational

Governing Board Packet

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet

Contents

Packet Overview.......cccccciii 1
AGENTO ... 3
Special Presentations.....cccoceeeeeeeeececeeecieecceeeeeenn, 4

Growing Care 2023-2025 Performance Review4

Poverty Representation in Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties4

CoNSEeNt TEBMS .. 5
September Meeting Minutes........ccocvveeeeeeeennes 5
DISCUSSION ITE@MS ...t 12
BUAQET . 12
Fiscal Report DiSCUSSION .......ccooeeieiieiiiiiiieea. 12
Operationalization of Workgroups................... 12
New Board Members.......ccoccveeeiniiieeeiniiieeeenes 12

September 26, 2025 H‘



Agenda

Governing Board Members

Governing Board Packet

~Q
LeaEr?l::g H Ll b

of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties

Governing Board Meeting

October 2, 2025, 2:00 — 4.00 pm
Rainbolt Conference Room
Leadership & Learning Center,
555 NW Van Buren Ave., Corvalllis

* Members of the public who want fo make public comment must sign in. During

V.

VII.

the public comment portion of the agenda, each individual speaker will have 3
minutes.

Roll Call

Special Presentation

a. Growing Care 2023-2025 Performance Review
b. Poverty Representation Across OQur Region

Public Comment
Director's Report
Current Board VYacancies

Consent Items
a. September Meeting Minutes

Discussion ltemn
a. Budget - Approval Needed

b. Fiscal Report Discussion
c. Operationalization of Workgroups — Informational

New Board Members — Informational

Next Meeting — November 8, 2025

Adjournment

All members of the EL Hulb Govemning Board must disclose when they believe they have
or may have a conflict of interest and may participate in discussions that are leading to
consensus. If, however, consensus cannot be reached and the group uses the fallback
voting process, the individual with the conflict of inferest may not participate in that final
vote,

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet

Special Presentations

Growing Care 2023-2025 Performance Review

Please view the presentation slides at hitps://Iblearlylearninghub.org/wp-
content/uploads/2025/09/Growing-Care-2023-2025-Performance-Review.pdf

Poverty Representation in Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties
Please view the presentation slides at hitps://Iblearlylearninghub.org/wp-
content/uploads/2025/09/Poverty-Representation-in-Linn-Benton-Lincolh-Counties-by-EL-Hub.pdf

September 26, 2025 H‘


https://lblearlylearninghub.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/09/Growing-Care-2023-2025-Performance-Review.pdf
https://lblearlylearninghub.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/09/Growing-Care-2023-2025-Performance-Review.pdf
https://lblearlylearninghub.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/09/Poverty-Representation-in-Linn-Benton-Lincoln-Counties-by-EL-Hub.pdf
https://lblearlylearninghub.org/wp-content/uploads/2025/09/Poverty-Representation-in-Linn-Benton-Lincoln-Counties-by-EL-Hub.pdf

Governing Board Packet

Consent ltems

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties

Governing Board Meeting Minutes

2:06 pm, September 4, 2025
Cnline via Zoom

Laura Farmer, Co-Chair

Jinguang Lin, EL Hub Data Manager

Kristi Collins, Matft Grams, Jinguang Lin, LeAnne Trask
Draft

Yes

Agenda topics
Board Members Present or Absent
Present| Absent| Present] Absent Present] Absent

Bettina Schempf
Benton County Human |:| |Z]
& Social Services

DeAnn Brown
Confederated Tribes of |:| IZ]
the Siletz Indians

Susan Halliday
Benton County K-12 E D

Belit Burke Jason Hay Paul Smith
Linn County Human & |:| E Education Service |Z| |:| Benton County Early |Z| |:|
Social Services District Childhood Education
Tammi Hillhouse
Dean Craig ] X Oregon X ] Diane Wilkinson ] X

Linn County Business Department of Lincoln County K-12

Human Services
Lynnette Wynkoop

Jeff Davis Todd Jeter :
Fiscal Agent D E] Coordinated Care |Z] D RCehflled”(élore Resource & D [Z]
Barbara Dougherty Paulina Kaiser
Lincoln County Early |Zl |:| Benton County z] |:| |:| |:|
Childhood Education Health
Stephany
Koehne
Laura Farmer .
Benton County Parent lZl D lér;ﬂdizlérgy Early E D I:l D
Education

A Quorum was present. There are currently 16 seated Board members, and nine were present at
this meeting.

Welcome and Infroductions
Board Members introduced themselves.

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties Governing Board Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 7

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet _

Strategic Investment Recommendations

Strategic investments are not intended to be strictly the Hulb making investments, but rather an
opportunity for us to partner with other programs/agencies that are making investments,
working to blend and braid mutual investments.

Kristi Collins intfroduced the Strategic Investments presentation, noting that the goal of this work
is to guide strategic investments across the three-county region. The data book serves as a
comprehensive resource highlighting regional trends, challenges, and opportunities, and the
strategic investments document builds on that to inform decision-making not only for the Hub
but also for sector and community partners.

Kristi emphasized that these strategic investments are not meant to be solely for the Early
Leaming Hubk, which is the least funded part of the system. Instead, the document is infended as
a tool to support blending and braiding of funds, cross-sector alignment, shared grant writing,
and identifying opportunities where investments can have the greatest impact.

In developing the document, Jinguang drew from Raise Up Oregon, the Hub's own strategic
plan, and ten identified categories of need. The analysis examined existing efforts aligned with
the plan, as well as areas where new investments could be valuable across sectors. The work is
organized by county—Linn, Benton, and Lincoln—highlighting both regional commonalities that
could benefit from shared initiatives and unigque needs specific to each county. The data also
provides comparisons to statewide benchmarks, helping to identify whether the region is
performing above or below state averages and what those differences may mean.

The Board raised a question about whether the most recent data still shows that single-mother-
led households are disproportionately represented in poverty across the region, parficularly in
Benton County. They noted that in the past, the numbers were higher than the state average. In
Benton County, they were nearly twice as high as the state average, whichis an important data
point to consider when considering strategic investments.

Jinguang confirmed the concern and noted that he would need to refer back to the data book
to verify the most recent numbers. He explained that the current recommendations highlight
county-level data with statewide benchmarks, but a more detailed regional compariscn may
require consulting the 2025 regional dataset. It was agreed that this issue could be followed up
on outside the meeting, and if the data still reflects this frend, it should b e highlighted moving
forward.

Kristi infrcduced the PowerPoint presentation, noting it was also available in Basecamp for
board members to review. She emphasized that the goal was not to read through the slides but
to highlight key points and focus the discussion on how to share the information with other
sectors and identify opportunities for alignment. The presentation organized ten categories of
need by high, medium, and low priority, with the observation that no frue “low priorities” exist in
the region. Rural access to services was highlighted as a significant concern across all three
counties, despite stronger performance in areas such as preschool enrollment in Corvallis and
Philomath.

Kristi explained that childcare and preschool enrollment were treated separately, notfing the
severe shortage of infant-toddler care across the region, with Lincoln County lacking any
publicly funded options. This shortage poses a challenge for working families who must return to
work shortly affer childbirth without adequate policy supports. She noted that some challenges
appear less severe overall but remain critical in specific parts of each county.

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties Governing Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 7

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet

The PowerPoint, prepared by Jinguang, outlined what the Hub is already doing within each
category and what is included in the strategic plan. Kristi encouraged board members to think
about cross-sector approaches as they reviewed the categories, such as expanding rural
services through transportation, mobile services, or telehealth. Additional questions were posed
for discussion, including:

¢ how employers and local governments could collaberate to expand aoffordable childcare,

¢ how schools and libraries could boost preschool enrollment and literacy,

+ how service providers could coordinate to reduce duplication in poverty supports,

¢ and how housing agencies could partner with early learning programs to improve stakbility.

Other key areas for brainstorming included strengthening coordination between preschools and
K-12 schools to support readiness and transitions, addressing absenteeism and specicl
education needs through community partnerships, and improving maternal and child health
through collaboration between healthcare providers, home visiting, and family support
programs. Kristi emphasized the importance of framing these questions for cross-sector
collaboration as the board moves forward.

Stephany shared that she regularly uses the regional data bock for Kidco's annual community
assessment, which guides service planning and ensures resources are aligned with community
needs.

Tammi highlighted partnerships ODHS has developed with Head Start and the Community
Services Consortium. She described successful housing navigator programs that help families
stabilize housing and reduce stressors, as well as youth service tfeams and FACT programs that
provide cross-sector support for children and families.

Kristi noted the absence of housing representation on the board and emphasized the need for
renewed outreach. Tammi added that such collaboration could also be valuable with the
Poverty Prevention Work Group.

Todd Jeter stressed that many systems are facing financial strain, making collaboration essential
to maximize impact, and described recent efforts 1o build partherships among schools,
counties, CCQOs, and the Department of Education. The board suggested that the data and
resources also be shared with the Partnership for Community Health. Kristi emphasized the
“whole child” approach, noting that readiness cannot be separated from factors such as food
and housing security,

The beard named funding as a central challenge in collaboration and stressing the need to
openly acknowledge financial redalities. Kristi agreed, highlighting the impeortance of pooling
limited resources across sectors to achieve greater impact for families. The board note d that
despite the financial pressures, this is not the time for organizations to retreat into silos but rather
to lean into collaboration for shared solutions.

The board emphasized the importance of creativity and flexibility in service delivery,
encouraging agencies to "show up differently” by meeting families where they are, such as
offering services in schools or rural communities where access is Iimited. It was noted that
despite budget and staffing constraints, partnerships and collaboration can help agencies
move beyond fraditional approaches. Kristi added that even when individual budgets are tight,
collective grant-seeking offers an opportunity to strengthen funding applications, particularly
when proposals demonstrate cross-sector collaboration and address multiple community needs.

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties Governing Board Meeting Minutes Page 3of 7

September 26, 2025 H‘




Governing Board Packet m

She encouraged board memlbers to think about potential partnerships when new opportunities
arise. The board observed that funders and philanthropic organizations want to see
collaboration that ensures their investments make a meaningful impact. Kristi closed the
discussion by noting the Hub’'s advantage in having both robust data and a strategic
investment plan to support collaborative funding requests.

Resignation of a Board Member

We have received Jeff’'s resignation from the EL Hub Governing Board. We have appreciated
the years of service, and 1t will be difficult to replace him.

The board emphasized the importance of filling the LBCC-designated board seat with someone
who has strong connections across parenting, education, and early childhood, as Jeff
previously demonstrated through his cross-sector expertise. Having representation with those
intersections would benefit the board, especially given the number of open seats that still need
to be filled. Kristi acknowledged the point and explained that recent rule changes may affect
who can serve in this role. Specifically, if the representative from the backbone organization has
supervisory authority over the Hub director, they may only serve as a non-voting member. She
noted that this is a new requirement compared to when Jeff served and said she would work
with LBCC to determine the most appropriate representative under the updated rules.

Resignation of a Board Member

The Board was asked to approve the resignation of Jeff Davis.
Motion: Paul Smith
2nd: Lagura Farmer

Y N A Y N A Y N A

DeAnn Susan Bettina
Brown L O O Halliday 2 O O Schempf L] O O
Relit Burke | [ O O |JasonHay |X |O O Paul Smith X | O O

. Tammi Diane
Dean Craig| [ [ [ Hillhouse > [ [ Wilkinson [ [ [
Jefipavis |00 (O O |teadueter | |0 |O \L/Q,’\r/“gkegfp O o |o
Barbara Pauling
Dougherty ] O O Kaiser 2 O O
Laura Stephany
Farmer X [ [ Koehne > [ [

Individual Votes Cast by Board Members (Yes, No, Abstain)

Abstentions: None
The Board voted to approve the item as presented.

Bridge Funding Budget

Kristi discussed the current uncertainty around funding levels from DELC following the close of
the legislative session and recent funding reductions. Hub contfracts are set to end on
September 30, and while DELC initially indicated funding information would be available in early
September, this timing did not align with our board’s September meeting. Our Governing Board

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties Governing Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 7

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet

Leadership Committee recommended preparing a short-term operating budget to ensure
continuity. A two-day budget was proposed to bridge operations until the October 2 board
meeting. The committee also recommended a 15-day budget in case a quorum is not met in
Cctober, dllowing fime for an electronic vote if needed. Both budget options were included in
the board packet for consideration.

In response to a question from the board, Kristi clarified that this short-term approach is only
necessary because contracts end September 30; normally, a three-month bridge budget (July—
September) covers this period until final numbers are received from the state. The board raised
questions about the approval process and whether monthly budgets are required, which Kristi
confirmed are not. This process is an exception to keep operations running smoothly until the
new contract cycle budget is finalized.

Bridge Funding
The Board was asked to gpprove Bridge Funding for October 1-15, 2025
Motion: Jason Hays
2nd: Laura Farmer

Y N A Y N A Y N A
DeAnn Susan Bettina
Brown a O O Halliday X O O Schempf [ O O
Belit Burke | O O O Jason Hay | X O O Paul Smith | X O O

. Tammi Diane

Dean Craig| L [ [ Hillhouse X [ [ Wilkinson O [ [
Jeff Davis | [ O O Todd Jeter | X O O \LA\//SQEQLGD O O O
Barbara Paulina
Dougherty > [ [ Kaiser > [ [
Laura Stephany
Farmer = [ [ Koehne = [ [

Individucl Votes Cast by Board Members (Yes, No, Abstain)

Abstentions: None
The Board voted to approve the item as presented.

LBL Hub Updates

Cur Coordinated Enrollment staff has been busy finalizing applicaticns for the upcoming
preschool year. Preschool Promise programs are currently at 93.7% enrcllment, with 17 slots
remaining out of 270, and 54 children on a waitlist for their preferred programs. Staff are
contacting families to offer alternative placements in family child care settings, which
historically fill last but provide high-quality preschool options. A new site in the Lebanon School
District is still recruiting, while the Alsea site continues to fluctuate based on community
demographics. Overdall, Preschool Promise enrollment is progressing well.
Kristi Collins shared the Director’s Report. She also

The Asset Mapping project is nearing completion, with only Toledo and Depoe Bay remaining.
There are ongecing discussions about whether Depoe Bay meefts initial project criteria,
particularly regarding grocery store access, and challenges remain in finding a host location.

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties Governing Board Meeting Minutes Page 5of 7

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet m

Cnce site visits conclude, the remaining grant time will be focused on compiling data and
producing community reports. Kristi noted the value of comparing quclitative findings from
families in rural communities with recently published rural access data, which could support
future grant opportunities.

The board is working to reactivate the Fiscal Oversight Committee. The committee has not yet
met, but plans to begin reviewing current templates and financial reporting processes in
preparation for receiving state funding numbers.

Following Jeff’s official resignation from the board, it is necessary to identify a new LBCC
representative for the Compliance Regulatory Committee. This committee will focus on alighing
the hub's charter with new rules and contracts.

August 2025 Meeting Minutes
The Board was asked to approve the minutes from the August 2025 meeting.
Motion: Stephany Koehne
2nd: Laura Farmer

Y N A LA £ AN Y N A
Erif/\vr;wn [ O O IS-|L;SII?Q ay X O O ? S I:Henr: f [ O O
Relit Burke | [ O O |JosonHay |X |O O Paul Smith |0 |OQ =4
Dean Craig| [ O o Lﬁmgﬂse B o o \%Icljlk?r?son O o o
Jeff Davis | [ O [0 |ToddlJeter X | O \L/\\//Sggfp O O O
sovenery |B |0 |0 iaer |® |0 |DO
tggr;oer ] O O ifephhnoeny > O O

Individucl Votes Cast by Board Members (Yes, No, Abstain)

Abstentions: Paul Smith, not present af the August meeting
The Board voted to approve the minutes as presented.

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties Governing Board Meeting Minutes Page é of 7

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet

Board Vacancies

We are redlly low on GB members, especidlly representatives from Lincoln County.

Kristi provided an update on governing board vacancies, noting that there are currently several
open seats, particularly in Lincoln County. She thanked Barb for sending potential candidate
names and explained that personal introductions from current board members are often more
successful than cold ocutreach emails. Kristi encouraged members to consider individuals in their
networks who are passionate about early learning and could represent their counties and
sectors. Interested candidates can observe a governing board meeting before committing,
and the application process is designed to be simple and accessible.

She dlso emphasized the importance of filling vacancies to ensure balanced representation
across counties. Kristi will be working with LBCC to fill the backbone representative seat and
reminded Jason that a Linn County K-12 representative is also needed. The application
materials are available on Basecamp, and extra copies are on hand if needed. Meetings are
open to the public in compliance with public meeting law, though guests should nofify staff in
advance due to Zoom waiting room reguirements.

Governing Board Meeting Attendance

Kristi addressed challenges with maintaining quorum, particularly during the summer months
and with the current number of governing board vacancies. She reminded board members
that, per the charter, missing three consecutive meetings or three unexcused absences within a
fiscal year could result in being asked to step down. However, the preference is always fo keep
members engaged and participating.

To help address attendance issues, Kristi encouraged members—especially those in standing
positions fied to their professional roles—to designate a proxy or altemate representative.
Proxies should be individuals within their crganizations who can represent them effectively and
are less likely to be pulled into the same emergency meetings. Once designated, proxies can
be added to Basecamp so they have full access to board materials and remain up fo date. This
ensures they are prepared to step in when needed and helps maintain consistent participation
and representation at board meetings.

2:00 pm, October 2, 2025
Online via Zoom

3:15 pm

Early Learning Hub of Linn, Benton & Lincoln Counties Governing Board Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 7

September 26, 2025 H‘



Governing Board Packet

Discussion Items

Budget
Please note that we have not yet received our allocation from DELC and will add the budget as
soon as numbers are available.

Fiscal Report Discussion
No handout for this item

Operationalization of Workgroups
No handout for this item

New Board Members
No handout for this item

September 26, 2025 H‘



